
 
 

CABINET 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL 
 

 

DATE Tuesday, 19 September, 2017 

TIME 1.00pm 

LOCATION Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, LL55 1SH 

CONTACT POINT Annes Sion 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS 
 

Members 

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader 

Mair Rowlands Deputy Leader 

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure 
and Culture 

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member of Highways and 
Municipal 

Peredur Jenkins Cabinet Member for Finance 

Dafydd Meurig Cabinet Member for the Environment 

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People 

W. Gareth Roberts Cabinet Member for Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Education 

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development 

 

Complete Agenda



 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Item Submitted 
by 

Officer Page 

1   APOLOGIES 

 

   

2   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST 

 

   

3   URGENT ITEMS 

 

   

4   MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 

 

   

5   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULTS, 
HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 

 

Cyng. / Cllr W 
Gareth 
Roberts 

Morwena 
Edwards 

3 - 12 

6   SAVINGS OVERVIEW 

 

Cyng. / Cllr 
Peredur 
Jenkins 

Dafydd 
Edwards 

13 - 
20 

7   FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Cyng / Cllr. 
Dyfrig 
Siencyn 

 21 - 
23 

8  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

  24 

9   LAND IN LLANRUG 

 

Cyng. / Cllr 
Dafydd 
Meurig 

  



CABINET CYNGOR GWYNEDD 

 

 

 

 
Cyswllt: 

01286 679868 

01286 679490 
cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

www.gwynedd.gov.uk 

 

 

Report to the Cabinet 

 
 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has 

happened in the areas within my remit as Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and 

Well-being. This includes outlining the latest developments against pledges within 

the Strategic Plan; where we have reached with the performance measures; and 

the latest in terms of plans for savings and cuts. 

 

1.2 I would remind you that all matters have already been the subject of discussions 

and have been scrutinised at meetings of the Departmental Management Team. 

 

1.3 On the whole, I am comfortable with the performance of the Adults, Health and 

Well-being Department. 

 

Date of meeting:  19 September, 2017  

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Gareth Roberts 

Contact Officer: Morwena Edwards, Corporate Director 

Contact Telephone 

Number: 

01286 679 468 

Title of Item: Performance Report  Adults, Health and Well-being 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


 

2. THE DECISION SOUGHT 

 

2.1. To accept and note the information in the report 

 

3. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

 

3.1. In order to ensure effective performance management. 

 

4. THE REASONING AND JUSTIFICATION FOR RECOMMENDING THE DECISION   

 

4.1. Strategic Plan Projects 

 

4.1.1. Brief progress reports are submitted below on the projects of the Strategic Plan 

2017-18.   

 

4.2. G1 Care Challenge - Try to ensure that the people of Gwynedd truly understand 

the challenge which faces us to motivate and support communities to contribute 

by taking action. 

 

4.2.1  During last year we managed to develop the 'story' of the Care Challenge, 

namely the background, context and the reason for change. The story was 

communicated and engagement was undertaken with stakeholders. A number 

of events took place to discuss the challenge. The continuous and challenging 

nature of this project means that we try to build on the successes from year to 

year to always improve Gwynedd's residents understanding of the challenge we 

face. 

 

4.2.2  As expected we have not yet actually started to prove the impact of this project, 

however, during the next few years and in establishing the Information, Advice 

and Assistance service (IAA) specifically, we anticipate a significant contribution 

towards the preventative agenda that will in turn contribute positively towards 

enabling the County's residents to live their lives as they wish and contribute to 

the Council's ability to refer resources to the services that need them. 

 

4.2.3  Since the last time I reported, several engagement sessions have been 

conducted with Department staff to share ideas and gather their views about 

the type of Information Advice and Assistance service we should be aiming for in 

the future.  These sessions have been successful in terms of the numbers who 

have contributed, feed-back received and hopefully through this we can ensure 

ownership of the work programme.   

 

4.2.4  Specific work streams will stem from the sessions conducted in June and the 

Department is in the process of summarising the main messages and offering 

clear recommendations regarding the way forward over the next few months.   

We already offer information and support in Gwynedd, however, it will be a 

challenge to adapt to offer a quality IAA for the people of Gwynedd. In time the 

Department will assess to ensure that this occurs.   I have also emphasised the 

need to work together with Health on the IAA service.  Although the Act only 

requires the Health Board to 'provide information' I am of the view that by 

working jointly with Health the Information, Advice and Assistance Service will 

offer the potential to be a much better service.  

 

 
Page 4



4.3  G2 Integrated Working Project, focusing on what counts to individuals - 

redesigning our current way of working.  

 

4.3.1 An agreement is in place with the Health Board in terms of establishing a structure 

for integrated working in the older people's field.   During May and June, key 

leading posts in care within the five areas have been filled. One of the two 

Transformation Leaders posts has also been filled at the start of July and a 

discussion was afoot with the Health Board regarding adapting the second post.  

Together, officers in the above posts as well as the Senior Adults Manager and 

leaders of the community nursing teams, will lead and raise the momentum for 

change in the way of working across the whole County.  

 

4.3.2  Over the next few months, teams of staff from the Council and the Health Board 

will transfer into the new area structure. Training sessions have taken place for the 

new teams and work locations are being adapted.  The Council and the Health 

Board will continuously assess the progress made with integrated working and 

when required will recommend adaptations if appropriate. 

 

4.3.3.  The process of restructuring offers opportunities to practice in an innovative way 

and to offer a better service for the people of Gwynedd.  However, in order to do 

this we ask our workforce to change their current ways of working.   Naturally, this 

is quite a challenge for our workforce and to this end it can at times have an 

impact on staff morale.   The period of uncertainty will end with the new structure 

in place and the workforce will benefit from this stability.   Having said that, this is 

something that I will keep an eye on over the next few months.  

 

4.4  G3 Restructuring the Adults, Health and Well-being Department - Ensure that the 

department's staffing structure is suitable for the future.  

 

4.4.1 With the work of establishing the departmental structure to achieve project G2 

nearing completion and the Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Team about to 

be established, it is considered that this scheme has been completed except for 

minor adaptations. The Department will implement further changes to the staffing 

structure if developmental opportunities arise or opportunities to work more 

efficiently.  It should be noted that sections of the Department, such as the 

Mental Health Service, were not part of the original project. However, it should be 

stressed that consideration will be given to adapting this field if a need is 

identified following discussions to strengthen existing integration arrangements 

with the Health Board.  

 

4.5  G4 Extra Care Housing - Extra Care Housing Buildings in Porthmadog.  

 

4.5.1 The building timetable for Extra Care Housing at Hafod y Gest has slipped due to; 

I understand a lack of bricklayers. The Anwyl company have stated that the 

development will be completed at the end of April 2018.  Because of the delay, 

the show flats will not be ready until November this year.  A lettings policy exists 

and priority is given to Porthmadog area residents.  50 applications have already 

been received for the scheme from local people with room for 40 residents.  

 

4.6  G5 Frondeg - Ensure clarity at Frondeg site and decide on the way forward.   

 

4.6.1 In January 2016, following a period of formal engagement and consultation, it 

was decided to develop a new accommodation model for adults with learning 

disabilities on the Frondeg site, and bring the current use of the building to an 

end once the new development was available.  Engagement has taken place 

with the main stakeholders on the draft plans.  Further meetings will be arranged Page 5



with all stakeholders before the final plans are ready.  The Cynefin Group have 

shared a timetable that states that they intend to submit a planning application 

in October 2017 with work commencing on the site in approximately May 2018, 

and to be completed between May/September 2019.   

 

4.6.2  I have emphasised with the Department the need to ensure that users and 

prospective users play a part in the development of their new homes.  Although 

this will not be an easy task, bearing in mind the profound needs of some of the 

users, I am anxious for us as a Council to develop opportunities and experiences 

for our users to be part of this development and I can confirm that the 

Department will be looking into this.   

 

4.7 G6 Internal provision - Determine how we run the Provider Service (that provides 

care services) and act on that. 

 

4.7.1 A decision has been made to put this work aside for at least two years (October 

2018) in order to consider wider options for the Council and its partners in a 

changing and fragile market. 

 

4.8 G7 Capacity and Sustainability of the Care and Health system - Respond to the 

current problems that exist in terms of care and health provisions specifically 

within the field of older people.  

 

4.8.1  Work on Phase 1 of the Llys Cadfan project has been completed and persons 

have started to move into the Early Dementia Unit.  We are confident that Phase 

2 of the new provision will be in place by September 2017 to improve specialist 

and respite services in the south of the CountyIn cooperation with the Health 

Board, plans are being developed to invest in early dementia beds at three other 

locations across the County and the hope is that investment can be secured 

from the ICF fund to implement at least one of these schemes, which would 

correspond to the phase 1 investment at Llys Cadfan, during the 2017-18 financial 

year. It is unlikely that we will know the result of the bidding process for ICF 

funding until September 2017.   

 

4.8.2  Recruitment to the care and nursing workforce continues to be extremely 

challenging. Efforts to attract and retain workers continue and are reinforced. 

Unfortunately, filling the gaps has not been that successful thus far and therefore 

the change is too slow to assist in the short term. As an example, a recent request 

by Ceredigion Council requesting assistnace with reqruitment of health care staff 

demonstartes that this is not a problem that exisits locally but is a National 

problem. We will coninue to discuss with Carmarthenshire ways to assist in 

addressing requitment demands and identify and learn from best practice.  

 

4.8.3  The Health Board is working in partnership with the Gwynedd and Anglesey Post-

16 Education Consortium in order to respond to recruitment issues.  Priority will be 

given to the 'difficult to recruit' areas during future recruitment campaigns. The 

ability to attract prospective nursing applicants is one of the biggest challenges 

for the organisation and plans are in place to work seamlessly with a more 

cooperative attitude when recruiting nurses.  

 

4.8.5  With other legislative changes regarding registration of workforce coming into 

effect, it is envisaged that achieving the aim of attracting and retaining a health 

and care workforce will continue for some time yet.  The private sector is also 

facing similar difficulties and work is under-way to establish three joint pilot 

schemes with providers to test new methods of working.   It is hoped that over 

time this will enable us to provide services that focus on the aims of individuals Page 6



and are more efficient and in turn will contribute towards our ability to reduce 

gaps/ waiting periods for a service/returning to the home for the County's 

vulnerable residents. 

 

4.8.4 Carers  -  Work continues to see if our arrangements and our current situation is 

suitable bearing in mind the expectations of the Act.  Steps have been taken to 

incorporate carers support work on the Well-being/preventative agenda. One of 

the Department's officers is leading and coordinating the work of supporting 

carers regionally, and this will contribute to our understanding of the situation and 

our ability to strengthen the provision based on robust information.  We will 

continue to ask for the views of professional officers, carers in Gwynedd and 

champions in the field in order to consider if our arrangements are suitable.  This 

work will enable us to decide whether or not there is a basis to commission a 

specific project or projects to support unpaid carers and/or how to make better 

use of IAA and preventative services.   

 

4.8.5  The Gwynedd and Anglesey Carers Strategy has been adopted.  The next step 

will be to draft an action plan and sub-groups in Gwynedd and Anglesey have 

started to meet to undertake this.  The Gwynedd sub-group includes Department 

members, 3rd sector partners, Health and carers.   

 

4.8.6  The Department is putting robust arrangements in place to support the carers of 

persons with mental health difficulties because of the feedback that the service 

was not effective.  Two internal support workers have taken on the work and 

early feedback about their support to these carers is very positive. We have also 

received very positive feedback about our carers emergency cards scheme and 

Carers Outreach have also started to advertise the scheme.  

 

4.8.7 Well-being - Well-being is central to all the Department's work and over the next 

few months the Department reports that there will be more focus on well-being.  

Well-being activities occur across the County at different levels by different 

organisations.  When moving to work into the five areas opportunities will arise to 

identify activities within our areas and to identify good practice.  I understand 

from the department that there are plans afoot to make financial applications to 

give the required priority to this area.  I look forward to receiving an update over 

the next few months.  

 

5. Performance Measures 

 

5.1  Appendix 1 reports on the performance measures that are linked to my portfolio. 

   

5.2  The OED23 measure gives a general overview of the department's direction, 

although it is still developmental in nature the measure identifies a positive shift in 

achieving 'what is important' for older people with physical disabilities.     In 

general, OED23, Percentage of older people with physical disabilities where an 

increase is seen in achieving what is important, is 90%.   Having said this 1485 talks 

of 'What matters’ have occurred since the beginning of the new framework.   Of 

these talks, 747 have established a baseline and 253 have been reviewed.  The 

performance of 90% reflects the performance following the review of the 253 

cases which is not a clear reflection given that 1484 talks were conducted.     The 

department recognises that some work is required on this measure as well as to 

continue with the 'Collaborative Conversations' training.  I trust that we will see an 

increase in the numbers who have been reviewed over the last few months and 

will see a better value to this measure. I believe that we are on the right track 

with this measure. 

 Page 7



5.3  With the OED24 measure, 80% of Learning Disability clients have seen an 

improvement in what is important.   We see a similar pattern with fewer numbers 

having established a baseline and the number of cases reviewed, but the unit will 

establish a baseline at every opportunity.   It is a challenge to set a baseline for 

individuals who do not have the mental capacity, and under these 

circumstances the unit makes use of advocacy.  In addition, the complex nature 

of some cases open to the unit has to be borne in mind, and that progress can 

take years but under these circumstances the department identifies the cases 

and scrutinises to see where we can have some influence. In future the unit will 

develop measures that will measure the 'Quality of Life'.  

 

5.4  Concern continues with the transfer into care for social care reasons waiting rates 

per 1,000 of the population that are 75+ yrs (SCA/001).   The rate of delayed 

transfers of care is 0.71 which compares well with the rest of Wales with a 

performance of 0.75.  However, when looking at the performance compared to 

the rest of north Wales our performance is less successful than Conwy who report 

0.07, Denbighshire at 0.10 and Flintshire at 0.24. Although the figures are only a 

day's snapshot, we need to understood why these areas are performing so much 

better than us and I have asked the department to look into this.   Although it is 

difficult to compare area by area, it is important that we identify any lessons to 

be learnt.  

 

5.5  As well as this work, the Cabinet will be aware of the 'week in a room' work 

programme that seeks to respond to the above.  In cooperation with the Health 

Board we have reviewed the care and health system, by following cases from 

beginning to end and try to create a system that works better for patients and by 

removing any obstacles that arise. As a result of this work a new way of working 

will be piloted at Ysbyty Gwynedd and I look forward greatly to the results of this 

innovative work and I will update you soon.   

 

5.6  You will be aware that improving access to Mental Health Services is a priority for 

the Council and in Appendix 1 you will see that Mental Health measures need to 

be developed.  You will also be aware that the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health 

Board has developed a new mental health strategy for all ages:   'Together for 

Mental Health in North Wales'. A range of specific measures will be provided by 

the board to improve quality, availability and access to Mental Health services in 

north Wales.  The intention in Gwynedd is to develop measures that are in 

keeping with this strategy.    

 

5.7 Establishment of the Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Unit has enabled the 

Council to respond more effectively to the new and increasing requirements 

within the adult safeguarding field.  Having said this we have seen some slippage 

in the performance of SCA/019. Of the adult protection referrals completed 

during the year, the percentage where the risk is managed, the risk is managed 

94% of the time.  I understand that the reason behind the performance is that 

three individuals refused intervention during the period.  

5.8  It is heartening to see that we continue to see progress with the measure 

PMA/20b Percentage of cases that have received a period of enablement - and 

have no care and support package six months later which is 90%.  In addition, 

measure PMA/20a Percentage of adults who have completed an enablement 

package - and who have a smaller care and assistance package six months 

later is also on the right track and is 92%.   

 

Page 8



6.  Financial Position / Savings  

 

6.1  The 'Final Accounts 2016/17' report confirms departmental underspend.   This 

underspend is a result of changing the way of working and achieving within the 

context of the Social Services and Well-being Act. 

 

6.2 The thinking with a number of the schemes, in the context of the 'Systems' working 

arrangements is that achieving on the financial side should follow fairly naturally 

from the transformation work.  Although the evidence does not give complete 

assurance, the background information suggests that the result of this can 

already be seen across the County.  The focus of this change is the Eifionydd 

area, where the work plan is integrated with the Health Board and has been in 

place for approximately two years.  As elements of learning from this Scheme will 

be shared across the County, together with the implementation of general 

changes to meet with the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being 

Act, there are signs that there is a reduction in the number of care packages that 

are commissioned and that this is reflected in the Department's expenditure. 

 

6.3 The current procedures in monitoring progress in achieving individual saving 

schemes suggest that a range of savings plans for the year 2017-18 have slipped, 

and savings of £179,100 have also slipped from year 2016/17. 

 

6.4 In relation to what is referred to in 6.2, the Head of Department intends to 

restructure and rationalise the programme of savings originally submitted and I 

am supportive of this direction.   A great deal has changed nationally in the care 

field since the programme was introduced and these include legislative changes 

and changes in the priorities of the Welsh Government in terms of guidance and 

funding schemes. This wider picture, together with a number of adaptations on 

the way the Department has been working at a local level over the last two 

years; mean that the original programme now complicates the efforts to achieve 

savings side by side with transforming the Department's services.   

 

6.5 The aim will be to try to bring all these historical schemes together and to offer an 

amended programme that:  

 Supports the transformation programme within the Department  

 Simplifies the reporting process  

 Releases staff time to achieve front-line work on transformation schemes that 

will lead to savings  

 Include outline proposals and adaptations to the programme that may make 

further contributions to fill the gap and achieve the savings target set.  

 

6.6 A proprsoal parper will be presented to Cabinet for consideration, and if 

approved, I am confident that we are on the right track and we will continue to 

see positive savings. 

 

6.7  During the departmental meeting I stressed the need to achieve savings bearing 

in mind the possible cuts in the years to come.  Although the message is not easy, 

this is the reality and it is a message that requires everyone's attention.   

 

6.58 From a bugetary perspective, the ‘Revenue Budget Accounts 2016/17, 

Identifying Early Risks’ presented to Cabinet on 18 July 2017 suggests the 

Department will overspend £147k during the year. I will work with the Head of 

Department in the coming year in order to take appropriate steps to ensure that 

the Department operates within the allocated budget.  

  

 Page 9



7. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

7.1  None to note. 

 

8. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

 

8.1. Views of the Statutory Officers: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer: 

 

No observations in terms of propriety 

 

 

ii. Head of Finance Department: 

 

I am satisfied that the contents of the report are a fair reflection of the financial 

situation.  As acknowledged in the report, the Department has faced substantial 

challenges in achieving its savings plans, which include plans that have slipped 

from previous years.  I therefore welcome the efforts of the Adult, Health and 

Wellbeing Department to identify alternative ways of achieving the necessary 

savings, and officers from the Finance Department will support the Department 

as this work proceeds. 
 

 

8.2. Views of the Local Member: 

 

8.2.1 Not a local matter 

 

8.3. Results of Any Consultation: 

 

8.3.1 None 

 

 

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix 1 Performance Measures 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



*  =  Ffigwr is yn welliant 

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures 
 

Ref. Achievement measure 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Latest 
information   

 
OED23 Percentage of Older People and People with Physical Disabilities where an 

increase is seen in achieving what is important to them.  

 

New 

Measure 

New 

Measure 

New 

Measure 

88% 90% 

SCA/001  Rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons per 1,000 population 

aged 75+. * 

 

1.55 1.05 2.38 4.44 0.71 

OED003 Enablement - Percentage of cases who have received a period of enablement who 

leave without a care package.   
54% 45% 55%  90.4% 

SCA/002a  Proportion of older people (65 years old or over) receiving assistance to live at 

home per 1,000 of the population.  * 
46 

(4.6%) 

45 

(4.5%) 

43 
 

(4.3%) 

42 
 

(4.2%) 

43 
 

(4.3%) 

SCA/002a 

LOCAL 

Proportion of older people (65 years old or over) receiving assistance to live at 

home per 1,000 of the population.  * 

 

79 

(7.9%) 

78 

(7.8%) 

73 
 

(7.3%) 

74 
 

(7.4%) 

84 
 

(8.4%) 
 

SCA/002b  The proportion of older people (65 years old or over) that the authority assisted 

in care homes per 1,000 of the population who were 65 years old or over on 31 

March. * 

 

26 

(2.6%) 

24 

(2.4%) 

23 
 

(2.3%) 

22 
 

(2.2%) 

22 
 

(2.2%) 

SCA/002b  

LOCAL 

The proportion of older people (65 years old or over) that the authority assisted 

in care homes per 1,000 of the population that were 65 years old or over on 31 

March except for those who are self-funded.  * 

 

20 

(2.0%) 

18 

(1.8%) 

17 
 

(1.7%) 

16 
 

(1.6%) 

22 
 

(2.2%) 

 SCA/019   

 

Of the % of the adult protection referrals completed during the year, the 

percentage where the danger has been controlled   

 

96% 100% 97% 100% 94% 

SCA/019   

LOCAL 

Of the % of the adult protection referrals completed during the year, the 

percentage where the danger has been controlled (except for those who have 
- - 99% 100% 91% 

P
age 11



*  =  Ffigwr is yn welliant 

refused intervention)   

 

 

 

Gofal - SCA/002a - Nid yw’r mesur cenedlaethol hwn yn cyfrifo’r bobl hynny sy’n derbyn gwasanaethau mwy ataliol eu natur e.e. Teleofal a 

Galluogi. Mae’r mesur yn cynnwys yn unig y gwasanaethau traddodiadol e.e. Gofal Cartref. Er mwyn cael darlun llawn o’r bobl hynny sy’n cael 

cefnogaeth yn eu cartref, mae fersiwn lleol o’r mesur wedi cael ei greu (SCA/002a LLEOL).  

 

Gofal - SCA/002b - Mae’r mesur cenedlaethol hwn yn cyfrifo’r ‘hunan arianwyr’ sydd yn byw yng Nghartrefi Preswyl y Sir. Mae gan Wynedd nifer 

o gartrefi mewnol o gymharu â gweddill Cymru, ac mae cyfri ‘hunan arianwyr’ yn gallu drysu’r sefyllfa wrth gymharu’n genedlaethol. Mae 

fersiwn lleol wedi ei greu ar gyfer eithrio’r ‘hunan arianwyr’ (SCA/002b LLEOL).   

 

Gofal - SCA/019 - Nid yw’r mesur cenedlaethol hwn yn eithrio'r unigolion sydd wedi gwrthod ymyrraeth. Mae fersiwn lleol wedi ei greu sy’n 

eithrio'r unigolyn sydd wedi gwrthod ymyrraeth (SCA/019  LLEOL) a thybir fod hyn yn rhoi gwell darlun o’r gwir sefyllfa. 

 
 

P
age 12



 
REPORT TO THE CABINET 

 

Date 19 September 2017 
 

Cabinet Member Councillor Peredur Jenkins 
 

Subject Savings Overview: 
Progress report on realising savings schemes 
 

Contact Officer Dafydd L Edwards, Head of Finance 
 

 

 

DECISION SOUGHT 
 
To note the encouraging progress towards realising the 2015/16 – 2017/18 savings 
schemes. 
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION / BACKGROUND 
 

The progress of realising the savings which are in the 2015/16 – 2017/18 
Savings Strategy is reported here. 

 
In the 2016/17 Financial Strategy, we had planned for savings of £9,201,411, 
with a further £7,231,751 in the 2017/18 Financial Strategy. 

 
Realising the individual schemes is the responsibility of the relevant Cabinet 
members, and the Cabinet Member for Finance keeps an overview of the whole 
picture in order to identify any problems with the procedure, or any specific 
department. 

 
The individual Cabinet Members’ performance reports to the meetings on 5th, 12th 
and 19th September have already detailed, as necessary, on the savings 
schemes within their own portfolios. 

 
 
2. DEPARTMENTAL SCHEMES 2016/17 

 Appendix 1 summarises the achievements of each department against the 
savings target set for them for the year 2016/17, and the position with regard to 
the slippage of historical schemes. Of the 144 schemes for the year, 134 have 
been realised in full or in part, and it is expected that the bulk of the remainder 
will be fully realised shortly. This means that 97% of the 2016/17 schemes have 
by now been realised. It can also be seen that progress has been made towards 
realising the 5 historical schemes, and it is envisaged that these will also be 
realised shortly.  

 
Whilst there is slippage with a number of the 2016/17 schemes in the Adults 
Department, progress was seen during 2016/17, and the Department’s final 
budget showed an underspend of £146k, as reported to the Cabinet on 6 June 
2017. The Head of the Adults Department proposes submitting a report outlining 
his wish to amalgamate a number of the individual schemes within various 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 
headings. This will include an alternative way of recording the financial benefit 
arising from working in a more efficient manner. If this proposal is approved, it is 
expected that a substantial amount of the savings within the schemes can be 
considered as having been realised. 
 
 

3. DEPARTMENTAL SCHEMES 2017/18 
 

Likewise, Appendix 2 summarises the present forecast in respect of realising the  
2017/18 schemes and savings. Of the 120 schemes, 78 have been realised and 
a further 28 are on track to be realised on time, resulting in 64% of the financial 
savings already realised, with a further 20% on track.  

 
The “slippage” figures for this year include the substantial challenge in the Adults 
Department. However, if the Head’s proposals, as referred to above, are 
approved, it is expected that a substantial part of the savings within the Adults 
2017/18 schemes will also be realised. 

 
There is one scheme within the Highways Department that is causing concern, 
but there are alternative proposals under consideration to fully achieve the 
savings. 

  
 
4. CONCLUSION  
 
 Generally, I am satisfied with the 2016/17 achievement, the forecasts in respect 

of realising what is outstanding, and the prospects for 2017/18.  The new Cabinet 
Members will of course need to continue monitoring the savings schemes and I 
am aware that this work is progressing.  Accordingly, I request that the Cabinet 
notes the encouraging progress towards realising the 2015/16 – 2017/18 savings 
schemes. 

 
 
 

 
View of the Local Member 
Not relevant 
 
 
 

Views of the Statutory Officers 
 
Monitoring Officer: 
No observations in terms of propriety. 
 
Head of Finance: 
I have collaborated with the Cabinet Member in the preparation of this report and I 
confirm the content. 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – 2016/17 Savings Schemes Overview by department 
Appendix 2 – 2017/18 Savings Schemes Overview by department 

Page 14



 
 

 OVERVIEW OF SAVINGS SCHEMES 2016/17 BY DEPARTMENT  APPENDIX 1 

Department 

Total Savings 
2016/17 and 

historical savings 
(H) to be realised 

 
£ (number) 

 
Realised schemes 

 
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with slippage  
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes not fully 
developed or 

have failed 
 

 
£ (number) 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Education 94,089   (3) 55,408   (2) 38,681  (1) - One scheme experienced some slippage: 

 Savings relating to the Education Contract and 
Employment Unit £38,681.  

It is forecast that this will be realised in 2017/18. 
 

Schools 2,095,000   (1) 2,095,000   (1) - - The scheme has been realised. 
 

Environment 656,480  (21) 656,480 (21)   All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 
 

Corporate 
Support 
 

575,039  (16) 575,039 (16) - - All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 

Finance 374,601  (17) 
(H) 50,000   (1) 

321,971 (15) 52,630  (2) 
(H) 50,000  (1) 

 

- Two of this year’s schemes have not been fully 
realised: 

 Re purchase of the PSBA network £30,000 (and 
£50,000 historical in 2015/16) 

 Revenue re-structuring £22,630 
 

The PSBA scheme is a topic currently being 
discussed on a National level, with the latest 
forecast strongly suggesting that the savings will be 
realised in 2018/19.  Minor slippage is forecast with 
the other scheme. 
 

  

P
age 15



 
 

Department 

Total Savings 
2016/17 and 

historical savings 
(H) to be realised 

 
£ (number) 

 
Realised schemes 

 
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with slippage   
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes not fully 
developed or 

have failed 
 

 
£ (number) 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Economy 801,283   (17) 801,283  (17) - - All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 

Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

1,559,219  (30) 
(H) 175,060    (2) 

1,378,119 (24) 181,100  (7*) 
(H) 175,060   (2) 

- Some progress in the realisation of individual savings 
over the past few months, but the Department has 
operated within its revenue budget in 2016/17.  As a 
result of operating in a  more efficient manner, the 
Head of Department has offered to attribute this 
acceptable financial position to the individual saving 
schemes, and to present a plan to consider merging 
a number of schemes on a theme basis, as they are 
within the same fields. 

Children and 
Families 

753,000  (11) 
 

753,000   (11) - - All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 

Highways and 
Municipal 

1,934,100  (20) 
 (H) 80,000    (2) 

1,934,100  (20) 
 

(H) 80,000  (2) - All of the 2016/17 have been realised, but there has 
been slippage with two historical schemes: 

 Public Conveniences £40,000 

 Rationalise Recycling Banks £40,000. 
 

The Public Conveniences scheme is moving forward 
jointly with the cuts scheme (£244,000 in 2017/18) 
in accordance with the Cabinet decision in June 
2017.  A report is to follow in respect of the recycling 
banks scheme. 

  

P
age 16



 
 

Department 

Total Savings 
2016/17 and 

historical savings 
(H) to be realised 

 
£ (number) 

 
Realised schemes 

 
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with slippage  
 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes not fully 
developed or 

have failed 
 

 
£ (number) 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Consultancy 146,000   (4) 146,000     (4) - - All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 
 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

-  - - No schemes programmed for 2016/17. 

Cross-
departmental 

212,600   (3) 
 

212,600     (3) 
 

- - All of this year’s schemes have been realised. 

TOTAL 9,201,411 (144) 
(H) 305,060   (5) 

8,929,000 (134) 272,411  (10*) 
(H) 305,060    (5) 

- 97% of the 2016/17 savings schemes have been 
realised, and slippage (rather than failure) is 
forecast with the remainder. 
 

(*A proportion of schemes in more than one gateway) 

 

P
age 17



 OVERVIEW OF SAVINGS SCHEMES 2017/18 BY DEPARTMENT        APPENDIX 2 

Department 

Total Savings 
2017/18  

 
 

£ (number) 

Realised 
schemes 

 
 

£ (number)  

Schemes on 
track to be 

realised timely 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with 
slippage  

£ (number) 

Schemes not 
fully 

developed or 
have failed  
£ (number) 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Education 
 

417,116   (5) 297,566 (3) 61,250 (1) 58,300 (1) - Making satisfactory progress towards 
achievement.  

Schools 990,000   (1) 691,010   (1) - - - £298,990  - Following a Cabinet decision on  13 
December 2016, the secondary schools 
proportion of this scheme is being bridged for 
two years.  
 

Environment 962,483  (25) 817,373  (19) 125,110 (5) 20,000  (1) - Making satisfactory progress towards 
achievement but some work is required to move 
forward the Smallholdings Rent Review scheme 
(£20,000) . 
 

Corporate 
Support 

408,469 (11) 408,469 (11) - - - All of the year’s schemes have been realised. 

Finance 115,215   (9) 
 

34,225   (6) 80,990 (3) - - Making satisfactory progress towards 
achievement. 
 

Economy 778,208 (20) 778,208 (20) - - - All of the year’s schemes have been realised. 
 
 

  

P
age 18



Department 

Total Savings 
2017/18  

 
 

£ (number) 

Realised 
schemes 

 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes on 
track to be 

realised timely 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with 
slippage  

£ (number) 

Schemes not 
fully 

developed or 
have failed  
£ (number) 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

1,299,000  (27) 88,500   (5) 594,500 (12) 616,000 (10)     - The Cabinet has already approved the re-
profiling of a number of this year’s schemes, but 
a substantial realisation challenge remains, with 
a high percentage of the schemes in portal 5.1 
(the realisation programme slipping or failing) or 
portal 5.2 (implementing, but behind).  
 

As a result of operating in a more efficient way, 
the Head has attributed savings to the various 
schemes and is to submit a proposal to consider 
merging a number of schemes on a theme basis. 

Children and 
Families 

339,500    (4) 
 
 

25,000    (1) 314,500 (3) - - Making satisfactory progress towards 
achievement, but need to bear in mind that 
circumstances outside the Department’s control 
can change the situation very quickly. 

Highways and 
Municipal 

1,831,450  (13) 1,404,450(8*) 281,000 (4*) 96,000   (1) 50,000  (1) Making satisfactory progress and implementing 
the Public Convenience scheme  (Cuts £244,000) 
in accordance with the Cabinet’s decision in 
June 2017.  
 
Some work needs to be done with the Recycling 
Centres scheme (£96,000) to move this forward 
from Portal 5.2 (implementing but behind) to 
Portal 5.3 (on track to be realised timely).  
There is also a need to find an alternative way to 
fully realise the Reduction in the Frequency of 
the Municipal Grass Cutting and Collection 
scheme (£50,000). 

P
age 19



 
 
Department 

Total Savings 
2017/18  

 
 

£ (number) 

Realised 
schemes 

 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes on 
track to be 

realised timely 
 

£ (number) 

Schemes being 
implemented, 

but with 
slippage  

£ (number) 

Schemes not 
fully 

developed or 
have failed  
£ (number) 

 
 

Comments by the Head of Finance 

Consultancy 105,000     (4) 105,000    (4) - - - All of the year’s schemes have been realised. 
 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

7,000     (1) 7,000    (1) - - - The scheme has been realised. 

Sub-total 7,253,441 
(120) 

 

4,656,801 
(79*) 

1,457,350 
(26*) 

790,300 (14) 50,000 (1) 64% of the year’s savings schemes have been 
realised, and 21% with a “green” assessment 
(portal 5.3).  

Less       

   Cross-
departmental 

-21,690 -21,690    Over achievement adjustment. 

Sub-total 7,231,751 4,656,801  1,457,350  790,300  50,000   

   Schools -298,990     2 year Bridging adjustment. 

TOTAL  6,932,761 4,635,111 1,457,350 790,300 50,000  

(*A proportion of schemes in more than one gateway)  

P
age 20



FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

CABINET CYNGOR GWYNEDD 
 

Date of discussion at the 

Cabinet 
Items to be Discussed Cabinet Member 

Quarter 3 2017/18 –  

1 October 2017 – 31 
December 2017  

  

3 October 2017 Breakfast Clubs Programme Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

 Employment Annual Report Cllr. Mair Rowlands 

 Self-Service Business Plan Cllr. Mair Rowlands 

 North Wales Economic 
Growth 

Cllr. Dyfrig Siencyn 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Leisure and Culture 

Cllr. Craig ab Iago 

24 October 2017 The Development of the 
Alternative Leisure Model 

Cllr. Craig ab Iago 

 Future of Education Provision 
in the Berwyn Catchment Area 

Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

 Gwynedd Secondary Schools 
Language Strategy 

Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

 Joint Local Development Plan Cllr. Dafydd Meurig 

21 November 2017 
Revenue Budget 2017/18 – 
Second Quarter Review 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

 
Capital Programme 2017/18 – 
Second Quarter Review 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

 
Remodelling the Youth 
Service  

Cllr. Craig ab Iago  

 
World Heritage Site 
Nomination 

Cllr. Ioan Thomas 

12 Rhagfyr 
Review of Bangor 
catchment area primary 
education provision  

 

Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Date of discussion at the 

Cabinet 
Items to be Discussed Cabinet Member 

Items to be discussed in 
Quarter 3 2017/18 but no 

date set as yet 

  

 Recommissioning the 
Provision of Home Care 

Cllr. W Gareth Roberts 

Quarter 44 2017/18 –  

1 January – 31 March 

  

2 January 2018 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

Cllr. Dafydd Meurig 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Education 

Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

 Performance Report of the 
Deputy Leader 

Cllr. Mair Rowlands 

09 January 2018 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Children 
a Supporting Families 

Cllr. Dilwyn Morgan 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Municipal 

Cllr. Gareth Griffith 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Finance 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

16 January 2018 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Leisure and Culture 

Cllr. Craig ab Iago 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development 

Cllr. Ioan Thomas 

 Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Adults, 
Health and Well-being 

Cllr. W Gareth Roberts  

13 February 2018 Revenue Budget 2017/18 – 
Thrid Quarter Review 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

 Capital Programme 2017/18 – 
Third Quarter Review 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

Page 22



Date of discussion at the 

Cabinet 
Items to be Discussed Cabinet Member 

 2018/19 Budget and the 
Financial Strategy for 2018/19 
– 2020/21 

Cllr. Peredur Jenkins 

Items to be discussed in 
Quarter 4 2017/18 but no 
date set as yet 

  

 Neuadd Dwyfor Cllr. Craig ab Iago 

 The Council Plan Cllr. Dyfrig Siencyn 

 

Page 23



 
 ITEM 8– EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The Chairman shall propose that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
during the discussion on the following item due to the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 11, Section 4, Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 
14.10.2 Exempt Information – Discretion to Exclude Public  
(a) The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, that exempt 
information would be disclosed.  
 
The report includes information relating to contract details and sales procedures which aren’t 

evident at this time. The information is considered exempt in accordance with category 14 

because it is information relating to an individual’s personal business or financial matters. 

 

ITEM 9 – LAND IN LLANRUG 

Page 24

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	5 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 - Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being

	6 SAVINGS OVERVIEW
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Savings Overview
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Savings Overview

	7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	8 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

